
 

 

 
 
To: Members of the  

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 Councillor Ian F. Payne (Chairman) 
Councillor Vanessa Allen (Vice-Chairman) 

 Councillor David Livett, Councillor Michael Tickner and Councillor Stephen Wells 
Dr Simon Davey and Mr Nicholas Marcar 

 
 A meeting of the Standards Committee will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on 

THURSDAY 22 FEBRUARY 2018 AT 7.00 PM  
 
 
 
 MARK BOWEN 

Director of Corporate Services 
 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
 

1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

2    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

3   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETIING  
 

 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions to the Chairman of this 
Committee must be received in writing 4 working days before the date of the meeting.  
Therefore please ensure questions are received by the Democratic Services Team by 
5pm on Friday 16th February 2018. 
  

4    MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6TH JULY 2017 AND MATTERS ARISING 
(Pages 1 - 4) 
 

5    MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT  
(Pages 5 - 34) 
 
 

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH 
 
TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333  CONTACT: Graham Walton 

   graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk 

    

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7743   

FAX: 020 8290 0608  DATE: 14 February 2018 



 
 

 

6   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED  
 

 The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during 
consideration of the items of business listed below as it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if 
members of the Press and public were present there would be disclosure to 
them of confidential information.  

  
 

Items of Business Schedule 12A Description 

7   MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT - 
APPENDIX D: COMPLAINTS  
(Pages 35 - 38) 
 
 

Information relating to any 
individual.  
 

 



1 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 6 July 2017 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Ian F. Payne (Chairman) 
Councillor Vanessa Allen (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor David Livett and Councillor Michael Tickner 

 
Also Present: 

 
Dr Simon Davey and Mr Nicholas Marcar 
 

 
1   TO APPOINT A CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR 

2017/18 
 
Councillors Ian F. Payne and Vanessa Allen were appointed Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman for the 2017/18 Council year.  
 
2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Stephen Wells. 
 
3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING 

THE MEETING 
 
No questions had been received. 
 
5   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5TH DECEMBER 2013 

AND MATTERS ARISING 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 5th December 2015 
be confirmed. 
 
6   CODE OF CONDUCT 

Report CSD17106 
 
The Committee received a report on the operation of the standards system in 
Bromley, noting the current arrangements and in particular the limited 
sanctions available other than for breaches of the Code of Conduct in relation 
to declarable pecuniary interests (DPIs) which would be investigated by the 
Police, with the Director of Public Prosecutions responsible for considering 
whether criminal charges should be brought. Censure and adverse publicity 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Standards Committee 
6 July 2017 
 

2 

were the main sanctions, with the Localism Act 2011 envisaging sanctions 
should be through the ballot box rather than the standards system. Requiring 
a Member to take training was possible, but there was no way to enforce this. 
Members could be removed from membership of committees, but this could 
only be decided by full Council on the recommendation of the party group.    
 
The Committee also discussed the resources available should it be necessary 
to conduct a standards investigation, with a co-opted member expressing 
concern that the Police might be reluctant to investigate while the Council 
might not have the resources and expertise to conduct a forensic audit. 
Members accepted that they would have to find the appropriate resources, 
based on legal advice. A co-opted member also suggested that the profile of 
standards issues and the Committee’s role needed to be raised; at the same 
time it was important not to encourage unnecessary complaints.   
 
The report sought the Committee’s views on whether any changes were 
required to the standards regime for the new Council to be elected in May 
2018. The following potential issues had been identified –  
 
(1) Dispensations  
 
The Committee considered whether to allow a Member with a disclosable 
pecuniary interest to remain in a meeting provided they did not speak or 
address the Committee where that right would be available to a member of the 
public. The Committee concluded that the Code should be amended to allow 
this.  
 
(2) Gifts and Hospitality 
 
Members considered whether to retain the need to register gifts and 
hospitality and, if so, whether they wished to retain the current threshold of 
£25. It was concluded that the £25 threshold should remain.  
 
(3) Registerable Interests 
 
Members considered whether to revise the details of interests which were 
registerable under the Code of Conduct – in particular whether the interests of 
other family members, such as siblings or children, should be declared. The 
Committee decided that the Rules should remain as they were.   
 
(4) Significant Interests  
 
Members considered whether to treat significant interests in the same way as 
disclosable pecuniary interests. It was noted that there was no legal 
requirement to do this, and that such a move would be likely to mean an 
increase in requests for dispensations. The Committee decided to make no 
change.  
 
 
 

Page 2



Standards Committee 
6 July 2017 

 

3 
 

(5) Independent Persons 
 
Members were asked whether it was necessary to undertake a new 
recruitment process for the appointment of Independent Persons to support 
the standards system. Members concluded that given the level of standards 
complaints this was not necessary. 
 
The Committee noted that no meetings had been called for several years, and 
discussed how frequently they should meet. It was decided that there should 
be at least one meeting each year. It was also proposed that the Chairman be 
appointed at the annual Council meeting, as with most other Committees.  
 
RESOLVED that, having considered the potential changes to the 
Standards system set out above, no changes be made for 2018 except 
that the dispensation system be changed to allow a Member with a 
disclosable pecuniary interest to remain in a meeting providing that they 
do not address the Committee, where that right would be available to a 
member of the public.   
 
7   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Report CSD17105 
 
At its meeting on 21st June 2017, the Audit Sub-Committee considered and 
approved the Annual Governance Statement which would form a part of the 
Council’s statutory accounts for the financial year 2016/17. The report to the 
Audit Sub-Committee, including the Annual Governance Statement (but 
excluding appendices on other matters) and the draft minutes of the Audit 
Sub-Committee’s meeting were circulated to seek the comments of the 
Standards Committee.  

It was confirmed that there were separate disaster recovery plans in place, 
and that Internal Audit reports could be referred to PDS Committees. 
Members noted that key role of Internal Audit in identifying governance 
issues, and expressed concern that only 80% of the 2016/17 audit plan had 
been completed, against a target of 90%. This was primarily a matter for the 
Audit Sub-Committee, but it was suggested that the Committee could invite 
the new Head of Audit to attend their proposed meeting later in the year.  

RESOLVED that the draft Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 be 
noted. 
 
8   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS SUBSEQUENTLY 

AMENDED 
 
RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the items of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings 
that if members of the Press and public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information. 
 

Page 3



Standards Committee 
6 July 2017 
 

4 

The following summary 
refers to matters 

involving exempt information 
 
 
9   APPENDIX TO ITEM 6: COMPLAINTS AGAINST 

COUNCILLORS 
 
The Committee considered a part 2 appendix to the report on the Code of 
Conduct, which summarised the complaints received against Councillors 
since the local elections in 2014. There had been relatively few complaints 
received by the Monitoring Officer, and none that had passed the threshold for 
investigation, so there had not been a need to consult the Independent 
Persons.  
 
Members suggested that it would be appropriate for Standards Committee 
Members, including the Independent Persons, to be circulated with 
information about complaints when they were received.  
 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 8.10 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 4



  

1 

Report No. 
CSD 18033 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date:  Thursday 22 February 2018 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: MONITORING OFFICER’S GENERAL REPORT  
 

Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel: 0208 461 7743    E-mail:  graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services 

Ward: N/A 

  
1. Reason for report 

1.1   To update the Committee on a number of standards issues -   

 Updates to the Code of Conduct 

 Registration of Gifts and Hospitality 

 Review of Local Government Ethical Standards 

 Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 

 Complaints against Councillors  
________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee considers the Monitoring Officer’s report and  

(i)  considers whether Council should be recommended to make changes to the Code of 
Conduct to require consistency of declaration at meetings between disclosable pecuniary 
interests and non-pecuniary interests; 

(ii)  considers the schedule of gifts and hospitality received by Councillors since 2014, and 
agree that a schedule of the declarations of gifts and hospitality made by Councillors is 
reviewed each year by this Committee; 

(iii) considers whether to respond to the Committee on Standards in Public Life’s consultation 
on local government ethical standards; 

(iv) notes the timetable for production of the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement and 
advises of any governance issues for consideration;   

(v) notes the complaints against Councillors in Appendix D (on the part 2 agenda). 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



  

2 

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children 
 
1. Summary of Impact:        
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Corporate Policy 
1.    Policy Status: Existing Policy:   
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council:  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost:  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Representation  
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £1,068,450 
 

5. Source of funding: 2017/18 Revenue Budget  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Personnel 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   Not Applicable  
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:  Not Applicable    
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement: Local Government Act 2000 and subsequent 
legislation. 

 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:  This report does not involve an executive decision  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Procurement 
 

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:        
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  The standards system has 
the potential to impact on any person who has contact with a Member of Bromley Council where 
that person considers the Member has breached the Code of Conduct. 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not Applicable  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



  

3 

3. COMMENTARY 

Updates to the Code of Conduct   

3.1    At its last meeting, the Committee considered the Council’s Code of Conduct in the light of the 
forthcoming local elections in 2018, and agreed that no changes were necessary except that the 
dispensation system be changed to allow a Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest to 
remain in a meeting providing that they do not address the Committee, where that right would 
be available to a member of the public.  

3.2  It is proposed that this change will be reported to full Council on 9th April, and Members are 
asked to consider if there are any other changes that they would wish to recommend to Council. 
In particular, Members are requested to consider whether there is scope for greater consistency 
between the declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests. At present, Members with a 
personal, non-pecuniary interest are not required by law to declare that interest. Bromley’s 
Code of Conduct does, however, require registration of a range of non-pecuniary interests, 
namely- 

(a) membership of outside bodies (as appointed by the Council) 

(b) membership of other public organisations; 

(c)  membership of charities;  

(d) membership of campaigning groups, political parties and trade unions. 

Although many Members do routinely declare such interests when they arise at committee 
meetings, there is no actual requirement to do so in the Council’s Code of Conduct. Members 
are asked to consider whether there is a need for this requirement to be added to the Code of 
Conduct to promote transparency and provide a consistent standard of declaration.  

Registration of Gifts and Hospitality  

3.3    A recent review of Gifts and Hospitality Declarations across the Council has noted that although 
the recording of gifts and hospitality by Members is transparent and, as required by statute, all 
declarations by Members are published on the Council website, consideration should be given 
to an annual review to ensure accuracy and highlight risk areas or potential for abuse by either 
the providers or the recipients of gifts and hospitality. It was also suggested that the Officer 
Registers should be reviewed to identify that any records where both Officers and Members 
have been offered hospitality are included in the Member declarations. It is therefore proposed 
that this Committee receives an annual update on Gifts and Hospitality declarations. A schedule 
of the Gifts and Hospitality Declarations made by Members in the current Council (that is, since 
May 2014) is attached as Appendix A.     

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards  

3.4    The Committee on Standards in Public Life is undertaking a review of local government ethical 
standards. As part of the review, the Committee is holding a public stakeholder consultation, 
which began on 29th January 2018 and closes on 18th May 2018. The terms of reference of the 
review are as follows -  

1. Examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in England for: 

a. Maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors; 

b. Investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due process; 

c. Enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct; 

d. Declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest; and 

Page 7



  

4 

e. Whistleblowing. 

2. Assess whether the existing structures, processes and practices are conducive to high 

standards of conduct in local government; 

3. Make any recommendations for how they can be improved; and 

4. Note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make recommendations for any 
measures that could be put in place to prevent and address such intimidation. 

 
The full text of the stakeholder consultation document is attached as Appendix B. The 
Committee is asked to consider whether Bromley needs to submit a response, and to indicate 
any issues where there are particular concerns. 

Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 

3.5    The Annual Governance Statement forms a part of the Council’s statutory accounts for each 
financial year. Legislative changes this year require completion of the process earlier than 
previously, with the Statement due to be considered by Audit Sub Committee on 24th May 2018.  
The timetable for the process is as detailed below -  

Action  
 

By when  

Assurance Statements sent to Corporate Leadership Team members  
 

16th February 
(completed)  
  

Departmental Assurance Statements signed by members of the 
Corporate Leadership Team  
 

2nd March  
 

Draft Annual Governance Statement agreed by Corporate Risk 
Management Group  
 

10th April  
(meeting booked)   

Draft Annual Governance Statement to Directors for 
comment/agreement  
 

25th April 

Any revisions to wording of Annual Governance Statement finalised  
 

1st May  

Annual Governance Statement to Audit Sub Committee for approval  24th May  
 

2 x Annual Governance Statements signed by the Chief Executive and 
Leader of the Council   

Between 25th and 
30th May  
 

2 x signed Annual Governance Statements submitted to Technical and 
Control  
 

Deadline 31st May  

Annual Governance Action Plan completed and diarised for review in 
line with Audit Sub Committee Meetings  
 

February 2019 

  
The Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 is attached as Appendix C for Members’ 
reference.       

 

 

 

Page 8



  

5 

Complaints  

3.6 Since the Committee’s last meeting on 6th July 2018, the level of complaints against Councillors 
has continued to be low, and none has passed the threshold for a full investigation. A list of 
complaints received in the 2017/18 Council year so far is attached as Appendix D on the part 2 
agenda.    

  

 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children/Policy/ 
Financial/Personnel/Legal/Procurement. 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



  

6 

Appendix A 

Gifts and Hospitality Declarations – 2014/18 
 

Councillor  Date  Gift or Hospitality 

Cllr Vanessa Allen  - None 

Cllr Graham Arthur  19/4/17 Cheltenham Races with Mears  

20/8/17 Biggin Hill Airshow - 2 tickets as a guest 
of Liberata 

Douglas Auld 18/12/15 Lunch at Bullers Wood School provided 
by Mr & Mrs B. Walker (estimated value 
£15-20) 

Katherine Bance - None 

Julian Benington June 2015 Attended the Biggin Hill Festival Of Flight 
and made a donation to the RAF 
Benevolent Fund to the cost of 
complimentary ticket. 

11/6/16 Complimentary Ticket and Hospitality, 
Biggin Hill Festival of Flight 

20/10/17 Churchill Theatre, Bromley - Meal in the 
new restaurant on opening night and 
tickets for the show for two 

Nicholas Bennett 11/6/16 Complimentary Ticket and Hospitality, 
Biggin Hill Festival of Flight 

Ruth Bennett 11/6/17 Complimentary Ticket and Hospitality, 
Biggin Hill Festival of Flight 

Eric Bosshard   

Kim Botting 17/8/17 Scarf received from a resident as thanks 
for assistance with a housing issue. 

16/11/17 A light meal provided by Orpington BID 
after being on stage for the Orpington 
lights & fireworks turn on. 

20/11/17 A meal provided by Orpington Rotary 
Club before I gave a talk about my 38 
year career in the MPS. 

Katy Boughey 11/6/14 Guest of Leander & Kent County Cricket 
Club at a cricket match with supper at 
their Canterbury ground. 

18/12/14 Lunch at Bullers Wood School 
sponsored by Anna & Bruce Walker. 

22/3/15 Opening lunch with husband at Cote 
Brasserie in Chislehurst 

14/5/15 Lunch at Bullers Wood School hosted by 
Bruce and Anna Walker 

29/5/15 Attended a match with lunch at Kent 
County Cricket Club sponsored by 
Leander 
 

27/5/16 Attended a lunch as  a guest of Bruce & 
Anna Walker at Bullers  Wood School 

3/6/16 Cricket match & reception at Beckenham 
Cricket Club  as a guest of Kent Cricket 
Club 
 

Page 10



  

7 

16/12/16 Lunch at Bullers Wood School hosted by 
Bruce and Anna Walker 

26/5/17 Lunch at Bullers Wood School 
sponsored by Bruce and Anna Walker 

14/7/17 Drinks reception hosted by Robinson 
Escott Partnership at Bromley Cricket 
Club 

15/12/17 Lunch at Bullers Wood School hosted by 
Bruce and Anna Walker 

Kevin Brooks  - None 

Lydia Buttinger - None 

Stephen Carr 11/6/14 Guest of Kent County Cricket Club -  
Kent Spitfires v Essex Eagles  

 11/9/14 London Youth Games Hall of Fame, 
Madame Tussauds  

 19/9/14 Charitable Dinner at the Natural History 
Museum - Berkeley Homes 

 29/5/15 Beckenham Cricket - Kent v Surrey   

 6/8/15 Canterbury Cricket - Kent v Northants  

 6/8/15 Mayor of Bromley Charity Dinner, 
Berkley Homes  

 24/11/15 Portrait Gallery Gatwick Airport  

 21/4/16 Invited to Berkeley Group Spring Ball 
together with a guest 

 3/6/16 Kent County Cricket Club - Cricket at 
Beckenham 

 4/8/16 Kent County Cricket Club - Cricket at 
Canterbury together with a guest 

 11/10/16 Dinner for London Borough Leaders 
hosted by the London Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry  

 4/11/16 Two tickets to the Berkeley Homes 
Eastern Counties charity ball on behalf of 
Ellenor at the Grange St Paul’s Hotel in 
London 

 7/12/16 Two tickets to "This House" at the 
Garrick Theatre on from Nimax Theatres 

 19/8/17 Two tickets to the Biggin Hill Festival of 
Flight  

 2/12/17 Churchill Theatre - two tickets for the 
Pantomime  

David Cartwright 2/12/17 Churchill Theatre -Pantomime tickets (4 
at reduced price of £20 each) 

Alan Collins - None 
 
 

Mary Cooke  1/12/15 Complimentary ticket and drinks - 
Pantomime at the Churchill Theatre on 
(estimated value £35) 

January 
2017 

16 red roses and two balloons from 
Backing Bromley (at the Bromley Town 
Twinning Dinner) 
 

Page 11



  

8 

Peter Dean 13/8/14 Lansdown Asset Management - 
Hospitality received. 

2/12/14 3 Pantomime Tickets received from the 
Churchill  

6/12/15 Received hospitality from Lansdown 
Asset Management, Cray Wanderers 
and Club Langley  

18/8/17 Received hospitality from Lansdown 
Asset Management  

20/8/17 Received hospitality from Club Langley -  

Ian Dunn - None 

Nicky Dykes - None 

Judi Ellis - None  

Robert Evans 26/9/14 The British Queen Restaurant - 
Complimentary meal (without drinks) 
provided for Councillors Evans and Joel 
and their wives costing approximately 
£85 in total. 

Simon Fawthrop - None 

Peter Fookes - None 

Peter Fortune 14/6/14 Ticket to Biggin Hill Air Show from the 
organisers of the event. 

14/5/15 Lunch provided by Bullers Wood School 
(value under £50) 

December 
2016 

Lunch provided by Bullers Wood School 
(value under £50) 

December 
2017 

5 discounted tickets for the Churchill 
Theatre Pantomime on Opening Night 

7/2/18 Gift of one, unopened tub of ‘Unicorn 
Poo’ from an Assistant Director at 
Bromley Council. 

Hannah Gray August 2014 Provision of champagne and a bracelet 
(approximate value £25): Provided with 
thanks from a Bromley resident. 

 June 2015 4 complimentary tickets to the Biggin Hill 
Air Show  

 June 2016 3 complimentary tickets to the Biggin Hill 
Air Show  

 17/8/16 Complimentary ticket to Bromley Cricket 
Club Charity Match as guest of Richard 
Lane  

 16/8/17 Complimentary ticket to Cricket at 
Beckenham as guest of Bruce Walker   

Ellie Harmer 19/1/15 Guest of local residents at a dinner at the 
Reform Club, 104 Piccadilly - cost 
unknown. 

Will Harmer  None 

Samaris Huntington-
Thresher 

 None 

William Huntington-
Thresher 

30/7/15 Offered a place at the Mayor's event 
worth £30. Declined the offer but 
attended the event paying for own ticket. 
 

Page 12



  

9 

31/7/15 Received small Amazon voucher from 
Affinity Sutton on leaving role as a 
member of the Regional Scrutiny 
Committee  

David Jefferys 2/12/17 Churchill Theatre - 2 reduced price 
tickets for the pantomime and wine 
reception 

Charles Joel 26/9/14 The British Queen Restaurant - 
Complementary meal (without drinks) 
provided for Councillors Joel and Evans 
and their wives costing approximately 
£85 in total. 

1/12/15 Complimentary ticket for Aladdin at the 
Bromley Churchill Theatre - value 
£27.00. 

February 
2016 

Gift received from a constituent of 2 
books worth £37.99  

2/12/17 Churchill Theatre - Three tickets at 
reduced rate for the Pantomime 

David Livett - None 

Kate Lymer 16/6/14 4 Tickets for the Biggin Hill Air Fair 

June 2015 Tickets for the Biggin Hill Festival of 
Flight 

11/6/16 2 Adult and 3 Child Tickets for the Biggin 
Hill Festival of Flight 

12/3/17 2 tickets and complimentary drinks for 
BYCO & Bromley Music Hub Massed 
Choirs concert at Pamoja Hall, 
Sevenoaks. 

Russell Mellor 11/6/14 Tickets for Kent County Cricket March 
and meal from Leander Homes Ltd.  

19/9/17 Local Authority Pension Fund Awards in 
London  

Alexa Michael 9/11/14 Bromley Youth Music Trust Concert at 
Langley Park Centre for Performing Arts   
(Voluntary registration - value estimated 
to be under £25) 
 

Peter Morgan - None 

Terence Nathan - None 

Keith Onslow 1/9/16 LAPF Investments Awards Gala Dinner 
at the Savoy - value probably over £25 

19/9/17 Local Authority Pension Fund Awards in 
London  

Tony Owen - None 

Angela Page  1/12/15 Complimentary ticket and interval drink 
for the pantomime at the Churchill 
Theatre  

2/12/17 Churchill Theatre - Two tickets at a 
reduced rate of £20 each for the 
Pantomime 

21/12/17 Bottle of L'anson champagne from 
resident 

Ian F. Payne - None 

Page 13



  

10 

Sarah Phillips - None  

Tom Philpott - None 

Chris Pierce 1/12/15 Complimentary ticket and drink - 
Pantomime at the Churchill Theatre  

25/2/16 Official opening of Orpington Odeon 
cinema - 2 tickets and drinks/food 
reception 

4/4/17 Official opening of BR6 Bakehouse, 
Orpington - drinks on arrival and 
afternoon tea 

2/12/17 Two half price tickets and four 
complimentary drinks - Pantomime at the 
Churchill  

Neil Reddin - None 

Catherine Rideout - None 

Charles Rideout - None 

Michael Rutherford 27/6/15 Taxi ride to London Pride event from 
Addison Lee - value £42. 

20/10/17 Churchill Theatre: Dinner, drinks and 
show tickets for launch of the new bar 
and restaurant (value about £100) 

Richard Scoates 11/6/16 Complimentary Ticket and Hospitality, 
Biggin Hill Festival of Flight 

Colin Smith - None 

Diane Smith - None  

Melanie Stevens  16/6/14 2 tickets for the Biggin Hill Festival of 
Flight - (shared with Councillor Tim 
Stevens) 

 18/9/15 Radio Two Music Night Show - 4 
complimentary tickets (hosted by 
Rizonjet) (shared with Cllr Tim Stevens) 

 June 2015 Biggin Hill Air Show - 4 complimentary 
tickets for which we paid for 2 (shared 
with Cllr Tim Stevens) 
 

 September 
2015 

75th BoB Anniversary Show - 2 
complimentary tickets , paid for 1 
(shared with Cllr Tim Stevens) 

 September 
2015 

Expo Exhibition - attendance (shared 
with Cllr Tim Stevens) 

 11/6/17 2 Tickets for the Biggin Hill Festival of 
Flight  

 20/8/17 Ticket for the Biggin Hill Festival of Flight   

 December 
2016 

Gift of a wooden reindeer from Men in 
Sheds, Biggin Hill Division, in December 
2016 at a cost of £35.00. 

Tim Stevens 11/6/14 2 tickets for Kent V Canterbury T20 
Cricket Match in Canterbury, including 
car parking/ground pass, dinner and 
drinks   

 16/6/14 2 tickets for the Biggin Hill Festival of 
Flight (shared with Councillor Melanie 
Stevens) 

Page 14



  

11 

 June 2014 Mytime Board Meeting in Birmingham, 
including an overnight hotel, all meals 
and golf on a Mytime course  

 18/9/15 Radio Two Music Night Show - 4 
complimentary tickets (hosted by 
Rizonjet) (shared with Cllr Melanie 
Stevens) 

 September 
2015 

Expo Exhibition - attendance (shared 
with Cllr Melanie Stevens) 

 September 
2015 

75th BoB Anniversary Show - 2 
complimentary tickets , paid for 1 
(shared with Cllr Melanie Stevens) 

 2015 Biggin Hill Air Show - 4 complimentary 
tickets for which we paid for 2 (shared 
with Cllr Melanie Stevens) 

Teresa Te June 2014 Biggin Hill Air Fair - Free food in the VIP 
tent (but bought own Air Fair Tickets) 

10/10/15 Scouts Activity at the Downe Scouts 
Activity Centre 

1/9/16 LAPF Investments Awards Gala Dinner 
at the Savoy - value probably over £25 

Michael Tickner - None  

Pauline Tunnicliffe 18/6/14 2 tickets to the Festival of Flight from 
London Biggin Hill Airport. 

August 2015 Lashings Cricket Match 

2016 Kent County Cricket Club - Beckenham 

Michael Turner - None 
 
 
 
 

Stephen Wells July 2014 Provision of champagne and chocolates 
(approximate value £40): Provided with 
thanks from a Bromley resident and 
passed on to the Officers who resolved 
the resident's issue. 

17/3/15 Directors Box Tickets including buffet 
and coffee for the Bromley Town v. 
Farnborough match, value about £50. 

11/6/16 Biggin Hill Festival of Flight - 
complimentary hospitality (but paid for 
entry ticket) 

19/20 
August 2017 

Biggin Hill Airshow  - VIP Tickets 

Angela Wilkins - None 

Richard Williams  - None 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 15



  

12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



  

13 

Appendix B 

 

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder Consultation 
 
The Committee on Standards in Public Life is undertaking a review of local government ethical 
standards. 
 
Robust standards arrangements are needed to safeguard local democracy, maintain high standards 
of conduct, and to protect ethical practice in local government. 
 
As part of this review, the Committee is holding a public stakeholder consultation. The consultation is 
open from 12:00 on Monday 29 January 2018 and closes at 17:00 on Friday 18 May 2018. 
 
Terms of reference 
 
The terms of reference for the review are to: 
 

2. Examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in England for: 

a. Maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors; 

b. Investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due process; 

c. Enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct; 

d. Declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest; and 

e. Whistleblowing. 

5. Assess whether the existing structures, processes and practices are conducive to high 

standards of conduct in local government; 

6. Make any recommendations for how they can be improved; and 

7. Note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make recommendations for any measures that 
could be put in place to prevent and address such intimidation. 

 
The review will consider all levels of local government in England, including town and parish councils, 
principal authorities, combined authorities (including Metro Mayors) and the Greater London Authority 
(including the Mayor of London). 
 
Local government ethical standards are a devolved issue. The Committee’s remit does not enable it 
to consider ethical standards issues in devolved nations in the UK except with the agreement of the 
relevant devolved administrations. However, we welcome any evidence relating to local government 
ethical standards in the devolved nations of the UK, particularly examples of best practice, for 
comparative purposes. 
 
Submissions will be published online alongside our final report, with any contact information (for 
example, email addresses) removed. 
 
Consultation questions 
 
The Committee invites responses to the following consultation questions. 
 
Please note that not all questions will be relevant to all respondents and that submissions do not 
need to respond to every question. Respondents may wish to give evidence about only one local 
authority, several local authorities, or local government in England as a whole.  Please do let us know 
whether your evidence is specific to one particular authority or is a more general comment on local 
government in England. 
 

Page 17



  

14 

Whilst we understand submissions may be grounded in personal experience, please note that the 
review is not an opportunity to have specific grievances considered. 
 
 
 
a. Are the existing structures, processes and practices in place working to ensure high standards 

of conduct by local councillors? If not, please say why. 

b. What, if any, are the most significant gaps in the current ethical standards regime for local 

government? 

 
Codes of conduct 
 
c. Are local authority adopted codes of conduct for councillors clear and easily understood? Do 

the codes cover an appropriate range of behaviours? What examples of good practice, 

including induction processes, exist? 

d. A local authority has a statutory duty to ensure that its adopted code of conduct for councillors 

is consistent with the Seven Principles of Public Life and that it includes appropriate provision 

(as decided by the local authority) for registering and declaring councillors’ interests. Are these 

requirements appropriate as they stand? If not, please say why. 

 
Investigations and decisions on allegations 
 

e. Are allegations of councillor misconduct investigated and decided fairly and with due process? 

i. What processes do local authorities have in place for investigating and deciding upon 

allegations? Do these processes meet requirements for due process? Should any 

additional safeguards be put in place to ensure due process? 

ii. Is the current requirement that the views of an Independent Person must be sought and 

taken into account before deciding on an allegation sufficient to ensure the objectivity 

and fairness of the decision process? Should this requirement be strengthened? If so, 

how? 

iii. Monitoring Officers are often involved in the process of investigating and deciding upon 

code breaches. Could Monitoring Officers be subject to conflicts of interest or undue 

pressure when doing so? How could Monitoring Officers be protected from this risk? 

 
Sanctions 
 

f. Are existing sanctions for councillor misconduct sufficient? 

i. What sanctions do local authorities use when councillors are found to have breached 

the code of conduct? Are these sanctions sufficient to deter breaches and, where 

relevant, to enforce compliance? 

ii. Should local authorities be given the ability to use additional sanctions? If so, what 

should these be? 

 
Declaring interests and conflicts of interest 
 
g. Are existing arrangements to declare councillors’ interests and manage conflicts of interest 

satisfactory? If not please say why. 

i. A local councillor is under a legal duty to register any pecuniary interests (or those of 

their spouse or partner), and cannot participate in discussion or votes that engage a 

disclosable pecuniary interest, nor take any further steps in relation to that matter, 

Page 18



  

15 

although local authorities can grant dispensations under certain circumstances. Are 

these statutory duties appropriate as they stand? 

ii. What arrangements do local authorities have in place to declare councillors’ interests, 

and manage conflicts of interest that go beyond the statutory requirements? Are these 

satisfactory? If not, please say why. 

 
Whistleblowing 
 

h. What arrangements are in place for whistleblowing, by the public, councillors, and officials? Are 

these satisfactory? 

 
Improving standards 
 
i. What steps could local authorities take to improve local government ethical standards? 

j. What steps could central government take to improve local government ethical standards? 

 
Intimidation of local councillors 
 

k. What is the nature, scale, and extent of intimidation towards local councillors? 

i. What measures could be put in place to prevent and address this intimidation? 

 
Who can respond? 
 
Anyone with an interest may make a submission. The Committee welcomes submissions from 
members of the public.  
 
However, the consultation is aimed particularly at the following stakeholders, both individually and 
corporately: 
 

● Local authorities and standards committees; 

● Local authority members (for example, Parish Councillors, District Councillors); 

● Local authority officials (for example, Monitoring Officers); 

● Think tanks with an interest or expertise in local government; 

● Academics with interest or expertise in local government; and 

● Representative bodies or groups related to local government. 

How to make a submission 
 
Submissions can be sent either in electronic format or in hard copy. 
 
Submissions must: 

● State clearly who the submission is from, i.e. whether from yourself or sent on behalf of an 

organisation; 

● Include a brief introduction about yourself/your organisation and your reason for submitting 

evidence; 

● Be in doc, docx, rtf, txt, ooxml or odt format, not PDF; 

● Be concise – we recommend no more than 2,000 words in length; and 

● Contain a contact email address if you are submitting by email. 

  
Submissions should: 

● Have numbered paragraphs; and 

Page 19



  

16 

● Comprise a single document. If there are any annexes or appendices, these should be 

included in the same document. 

  
It would be helpful if your submission included any factual information you have to offer from which 
the Committee might be able to draw conclusions, and any recommendations for action which you 
would like the Committee to consider. 
  
The Committee may choose not to accept a submission as evidence, or not to publish a submission 
even if it is accepted as evidence. This may occur where a submission is very long or contains 
material which is inappropriate. 
  
Submissions sent to the Committee after the deadline of 17:00 on Friday 18 May 2018 may not be 
considered. 
  
Submissions can be sent: 
1.  Via email to: public@public-standards.gov.uk 
2.  Via post to: 

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards 
Committee on Standards in Public Life 
GC:07 
1 Horse Guards Road 
London 
SW1A 2HQ 

  
If you have any questions, please contact the Committee’s Secretariat by email (public@public-
standards.gov.uk) or phone (0207 271 2948). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



Scope of Responsibility 

The London Borough of Bromley is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively. Bromley also has a duty under the Local Government Act 
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, Bromley is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for 
the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 

Bromley has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the principles of 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE) Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework. A copy of the code is on our website at www.bromley.gov.uk or can be obtained from Chief 
Executive’s Department, Bromley Civic Centre, Stockwell Close, Bromley BR1 3UH. This statement 
explains how Bromley has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015, regulation 6 (1), which requires an authority to conduct a review of the 
effectiveness of its system of internal control and prepare an annual governance statement. 

The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by which the authority is 
directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its 
community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider 
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a 
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is 
based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Bromley’s 
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, 
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

The governance framework has been in place at Bromley for the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the 
date of approval of the annual report and statement of accounts. 

The Governance Framework 

The following summarises the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise Bromley’s 
governance arrangements based upon the six core principles of good governance: 

1) Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and creating and
implementing a vision for the local area:

Bromley is a member-led, commissioning authority, delivering services through whoever is best placed to
provide quality and value for money to our residents. We support residents to manage their lives
independently with the minimum of intervention from the Council.

Since 2005 the Council has had an agreed framework to improve the life of all those that visit, live,
study, or work in the borough. These objectives were amended in 2013 to reflect our public health and

The London Borough of Bromley 112

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 21

http://www.bromley.gov.uk/


health and wellbeing agenda as well as our priority to continue to invest in the economic wellbeing of 
our borough.  

This vision is called ‘Building a Better Bromley’ and has seven key priority areas: 

• A Quality Environment
• Regeneration
• Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres
• Supporting our Children and Young People
• Supporting Independence
• Safer Bromley
• Healthy Bromley

Our officer and political structures are all aligned to deliver this vision and it sets the direction and 
policies which other plans should help to deliver and is shared across the Council in our specific 
Portfolio messages and our departmental, divisional and team plans. 

To support this our Corporate Operating Principles are the operational model for the Council which set 
out our approach to creating a flexible, responsive organisation that can embrace new ways of working 
with partners and staff to maintain and improve services to our community: 

• Member-led: The Council’s resources will be targeted at local priorities as agreed by elected
Members

• Delivering Value for Money: The Council’s services will be provided by whoever offers customers
and council tax payers excellent value for money

• Supporting Independence: The Council will enable and encourage citizens to take more
responsibility for their own lives, with the most vulnerable being provided with the help they need

• Efficient and non-bureaucratic: The Council will seek to reduce interference and bureaucratic
control whilst protecting the Borough’s distinctive character

Our Portfolio Plans set out what we aim to deliver in the current year and what our performance targets 
are, using a range of national and local indicators. Overseeing the successful delivery of each plan is the 
joint responsibility of the Portfolio Holder and the members of the appropriate Policy Development and 
Scrutiny Committee (PDS). The Portfolios are aligned behind the priorities identified in Building a 
Better Bromley. In addition the Health and Wellbeing Board is a collaboration between Bromley Council 
and various partner agencies whose role is to understand their local community’s needs, agree priorities 
and encourage commissioners to work in a more joined up way. 

Our achievements over the past year and plans for the future are reported in the Annual Report and 
Statement of Accounts.  

With substantial additional savings to be made over the next 4 years the financial situation continues to 
drive the future direction and work of the Council.  

The Commissioning Team, led by the Director of Commissioning  and overseen by the Portfolio Holder 
for Resources, continue to review all our services to ensure best value for money and to determine who 
is best placed to deliver high quality services based on local priorities and value for money principles, 
within a balanced budget. 

Following scrutiny through the PDS process, the relevant Portfolio Holder and the Executive will make 
the final decision on implementation. As part of the process formal consultations are also carried out 
with staff, including Trade Union and staff representatives, and service users. 

The London Borough of Bromley 113

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 22



2) Members and Officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined
functions and roles:

Member/Officer roles are defined in the Constitution which sets out how the Council operates, how
decisions are made and the procedures followed to ensure that decision making is efficient, transparent
and accountable to local people. Some of these processes are required by law, while others are a matter
for the Council to choose. This is supplemented by a Member/Officer protocol which governs the
relationship between them.

Bromley continues to operate the ‘leader and cabinet’ model whereby the Leader appoints the Executive,
and decides Portfolio Holder arrangements and responsibilities and agrees any formal delegation of
various powers to the Council’s Chief Officers and their staff.

The Council’s decision making structure is divided between executive and non-executive matters. The
Executive has seven Members and is the Council’s main decision making body.  It is chaired by the
Leader of the Council.  It either makes decisions itself or six of its Members, who hold Portfolios, decide
on matters relating to specialist areas. The Portfolios cover:

• Care Services (including health)
• Education Children and Families
• Environment
• Public Protection and Safety
• Renewal and Recreation
• Resources

By law the Executive cannot take all Council decisions as some matters have to be decided elsewhere, 
principally by the Development Control Committee (planning, conservation, highways use and 
regulation etc.) and the General Purposes and Licensing Committee (electoral issues, staffing matters, 
licensing matters etc.) and their Sub-Committees. 

The Leader of the Council  is appointed on a four year term following the Local elections  and 
membership of the Executive and various committees is formally announced at the Council’s Annual 
Meeting.  

The Director of Corporate Services (as Monitoring Officer) is responsible for ensuring the lawfulness 
and fairness of Council decision making, compliance with codes and protocols, and promoting good 
governance and high ethical standards. 

The Director of Finance (as Section 151 Officer) is responsible for the proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs, preparing the Council’s statement of accounts in accordance with proper 
practices, keeping proper accounting records and taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud. 
Bromley's financial management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA 
Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010). The Director of 
Finance performs the role of Chief Financial Officer. 

The Corporate Leadership Team is led by the Chief Executive (and Head of Paid Service) who is 
responsible and accountable to the Council for all aspects of corporate and operational management.  

Bromley remains committed to providing a working environment in which staff can contribute to the 
success of the Council. Our staff commitment sets out the responsibility we all share in making this 
happen. 

The London Borough of Bromley
The London Borough of Bromley

The London Borough of Bromley 114

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 23



3) Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through
upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour:

Bromley has adopted a number of codes and protocols that govern the activities of Members and
Officers which are communicated as part of the induction process and made available via the intranet.
These include codes of conduct covering conflicts of interest and gifts and hospitality.

Local authorities have a duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct. It is mandatory that
each local authority adopts a Code of Conduct dealing with the conduct that is expected of Councillors
and co-opted members when acting in that capacity.

The Code of Conduct approved by full Council in 2012 requires new Members and co-opted members to
register their pecuniary and other interests within 28 days of taking office and when there are any
changes. The requirement to register pecuniary interests also extends to a spouse or partner. Any gifts
and hospitality with a value of over £25 also need to be registered within 28 days of receipt.

The declarations made by each Councillor are detailed on the ‘Your Councillors’ page on the Council’s
website.

The Standards Committee considers complaints about Councillors. The Monitoring Officer must consult
with an Independent Person before any decision is taken to investigate  an allegation of misconduct by a
Councillor, or before a decision is made on action to be taken in respect of that Councillor.

Officers are also subject to Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 which means that they are
required to disclose any direct or indirect pecuniary interests they may have in any contract or potential
contract involving the Council. In addition they are prohibited from receiving any fee or reward as result
of their employment with the Council, other than their agreed remuneration. A reminder is sent out on an
annual basis with registers maintained by the Monitoring Officer and individual Directors.

The Council’s confidential reporting code ‘Raising Concerns’ sets out how employees and contractors
working for the Council on council premises can report their major concerns about any aspect of the
Council’s work including concerns about Members of the Council. This is designed to enable people to
whistleblow without fear of victimisation, subsequent discrimination or disadvantage. The code is widely
publicised via the intranet, posters, internal newsletters, and on the Council’s website.

We continue to operate a very successful Fraud Partnership with the London Borough of Greenwich
building on our Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. Outcomes are reported to Audit Sub-Committee,
and prosecutions publicised in the local press and on the Council’s website. Housing Benefit frauds are
now investigated by the Single Fraud Investigation Service.

Following a successful bid in obtaining Department for Communities and Local Government funding
Bromley launched a fraud App for mobile devices in August 2015 which local residents can use to
quickly and efficiently report where they suspect fraud is being committed.  It is free, secure, easy to use
and completely confidential.  It can also be used to provide lots of up-to-date information about different
types of fraud and can alert residents to scams. The plan is to roll out the App for use in 38 other
boroughs across the country.

4) Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing
risk:

The Director of Corporate Services (as Monitoring Officer) works with the Constitution Improvement
Working Group to review and updates the constitutional framework including Rules of Procedure and

The London Borough of Bromley 115

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 24



Standing Orders (which regulate meetings of the Council) and the Scheme of Delegation (which sets out 
formal delegation of various powers to the Council’s Chief Officers and staff) on a regular basis 
reporting to full Council. The Working Group met twice during 2016/17. 

The Director of Finance (as Section 151 Officer) likewise reviews and updates Financial Regulations, 
Contract Procedure Rules and the Scheme of Delegation (so far as it relates to financial matters), which 
are incorporated into the Constitution. Financial Regulations are one of a set of management documents 
which collectively control and co-ordinate the financial affairs of the Council.  

The scrutiny function provided by the six Policy Development and Scrutiny (PDS) Committees 
continues to provide constructive challenge leading to better and more robust decisions. The Executive 
and Resources PDS Committee has an over-arching, co-ordinating role on behalf of the other five PDS 
Committees. The Committee’s principle role is to scrutinise the decisions of the Executive and to hold 
the Leader of the Council , the Chief Executive and the Resources Portfolio Holder to account. 

The Constitution Improvement Working Group produced its fifth report in February 2016 making 
recommendations on several issues including a change to the way the Council develops policy and 
scrutinises the working of the Council.  Full Council accepted the recommendations and a trial ‘select 
committee’ approach was undertaken by the Education Select Committee in 2016/17 and has been 
continued into 2017/18. Full Council also accepted their recommendation that the Executive and 
Resources PDS Committee establish a Contracts Sub-Committee with scope to examine contracts and 
commissioning issues across the Council and this has been actioned in 2016/17. 

The Council’s Risk Management Strategy is kept under review to reflect current procedures, guidance 
issued by CIPFA and best practice. This is overseen by the Corporate Risk Management Group 
providing a strategic overview of risk management, health and safety, business continuity and emergency 
planning activities to improve efficiency and develop synergies in line with Council priorities. The 
Group continues to report to Audit Sub-Committee. Each departmental representative acts as risk 
champion for their area to disseminate risk management information and facilitate the identification and 
assessment of risks. 

The Audit Sub-Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing all aspects of the Council’s 
arrangements for audit including fraud and risk. The Committee is independent of the Executive and  
scrutiny functions. 

Internal Audit actively participates in the National Fraud Initiative, an exercise that matches electronic 
data within and between public and private sector bodies to prevent and detect fraud. 

Arrangements are in place for receiving and investigating complaints. Leaflets and forms are available 
from enquiry points and libraries, and can be accessed on the Council’s website. The same form can also 
be used to make a compliment or suggestion. The public is encouraged to report any problems like anti-
social behaviour or a missed bin collection online. The Chief Executive and Director of Corporate 
Services monitor how complaints are handled within departments.  

The Bromley Borough Resilience Forum, a statutory forum, meets quarterly to facilitate co-operation 
and information sharing at the borough level between key stakeholders in relation to emergency 
preparedness for major events and incidents. The Forum has a representative that attends the wider Safer 
Bromley Partnership Strategic Group. Through the Forum and pan-London structures the Partnership 
regularly has the opportunity to participate in training and exercise events to develop and maintain local 
multi-agency emergency arrangements.  
Within the Council we continue to review and maintain our arrangements to respond to and recover from 
emergencies affecting the Borough. We also review and maintain our business continuity arrangements 

The London Borough of Bromley 116

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 25



to ensure that critical activities and services continue to operate in the event of disruptive events and 
emergencies. Our procurement policy requires business continuity plans to be part of any tendering 
process.  

5) Developing the capacity and capability of Members and Officers to be effective:

Corporate training provision is reviewed each year to ensure that the learning and development
opportunities on offer reflect the key priorities of the organisation; supporting staff to develop a good
mix of skills and knowledge so that they are able to perform effectively in their current job and are able
to tackle the many changes facing local government.

Officer training needs are identified as part of the annual Performance Appraisal and Development
Scheme and there is a comprehensive training programme for all staff. In parallel a Managers’ Toolkit
site is maintained on the intranet to provide a depository of policies, procedures, guidance and tools
enabling all managers across the Council to work more effectively and efficiently.

There are three main training programmes; Organisational Development (including Commissioning and
Contract Management, Finance, People Management), Children’s Social Care (including Safeguarding,
and Continuing Professional Development) and Adult’s Social Care (including the Care Act 2014,
Awareness of Medical Conditions, Health and Safety).  To complement this face-to-face training many
of the topics are now available via the web based Bromley Learning Hub which allows users to develop
their skills online at a time and place that suits them. Depending on their duties some Officer training is
mandatory.

Specific training for Members targets key policy issues and areas of current interest. This is supported by
a dedicated Member Development site on the intranet and an area on the Bromley Learning Hub
dedicated to Councillors. During the year the Director of Finance held a Finance seminar to update
Members on financial issues affecting the Council and a seminar on welfare reform.

IT training is delivered in partnership with Bromley Adult Education College. Officers also have access
to external workshops and seminars via our membership of organisations like CIPFA.

6) Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability

We continue to review how we can improve our channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders. Increasingly Bromley is using social media sites like Twitter and
Facebook to provide information and links to upcoming events. Everyone over the age of 18 can also
register for a MyBromley account where residents can manage their council tax, access services, receive
alerts and relevant information online. Besides the main Council website Bromley MyLife is the social
care and health website. It provides information and advice for people who have care and support needs,
their carers and people who are planning for their future needs.

Statistics show that there is a steady increase in visits to our website to view pages and access online
services like council tax and waste. Mobile devices or tablets now account for more than half the visits.

Council meetings are held in public and agendas and report packs are made available in advance on the
Council website, at the Civic Centre and through local libraries at least 5 working days prior to each
meeting.  Most meetings start at 7pm and there are some daytime meetings. Members of the public can
ask questions at a meeting or a written reply can be sent subject to giving sufficient notice. There is a
facility to set up daily email alerts on key words or topics.

The London Borough of Bromley 117

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 26



The Council held three meetings in November 2016 (two round-table meetings for representatives from 
residents’ associations, and a wider public meeting) as part of the 2017/18 budget consultation. The 
consultation included an online survey, focusing on resident’s priorities, collecting their views on what 
they felt was most important, and asking for practical ideas for saving and generating money to help 
secure important front line services. This attracted 2,573 replies.  This was supplemented by links to 
detailed information and graphs about the Council’s finances on the main website. Additionally 
submissions were received from Bromley Youth Council enabling young people to have a say in how 
local services are organised, and connecting them with local democracy. Consultation papers were also 
sent to local business representatives for their views and comments. Prior to finalising the ‘Schools 
Budget’ the Education Portfolio Holder consulted Headteachers, Governors and the Schools Forum. 

As part of continuing development of Bromley’s Local Plan, the Draft Local Plan was agreed by the 
council’s Executive in July 2016 for consultation with local residents and the wider community the 
Council carried out consultations between November and December 2016. These covered draft site 
allocations for housing and education use, together with the policies to guide development in the 
borough, and consideration of future planning applications. The Council also consulted on changes to the 
Council Tax Support Scheme with effect from 1 April 2017 and a Cycling Strategy setting out proposals 
for cycling in the borough up until 2026. 

Departments also use surveys to ensure that services are being delivered efficiently and effectively. 

The Council operates a Petition Scheme whereby any person who lives works or studies in the Borough 
of Bromley can submit a petition. Once a petition has been validated a response will normally be sent 
back within 10 working days. If petitioners are dissatisfied with the Council’s response to a petition they 
have submitted they can request that the issue be brought to a meeting of the full Council for 
consideration, provided that the number of verified signatures exceeds the threshold required (500 
signatures, or 1,000 signatures for an e-petition.) The lead petitioner or their nominee can address the 
Council for up to five minutes. All petition responses are published on the Council’s website. 

Given the increasing numbers of Freedom of Information requests, an online form has been introduced to 
channel requests to the right departments so that enquiries can be dealt with as quickly and efficiently as 
possible. 

Bromley works in partnership with many local organisations representing the views of residents and the 
public, private and voluntary sectors.  

The Borough Officers’ group meets on an informal basis to monitor and direct the work of the main 
thematic partnerships. The group is chaired by the Leader of the Council and includes representatives 
from the emergency and health services and the voluntary sector. 

The thematic partnerships (Bromley Economic Partnership and Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic 
Group) hold open meetings and agenda papers and minutes are published on the Council website. The 
meetings receive reports from other key strategic partnerships and the main partnerships themselves. 
Terms of reference and governance arrangements are in place. The partnerships are subject to scrutiny by 
the relevant PDS Committees.  

The Children’s Trust Stakeholder Conference and the Adult Services Stakeholder Conference involve 
partner agencies, voluntary and community organisations and service users in shaping business planning 
and priorities for the future. The theme of Adult Services Stakeholder Conference held in November 
2015 was ‘Living Well with Dementia in Bromley’. The Children’s Trust Stakeholder Conference held 
in March 2016 focused on ‘Working with children and young people to maintain their emotional 

The London Borough of Bromley 118

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 27



wellbeing’. Both bodies report to the Care Services Portfolio Holder and other Portfolio Holders as 
appropriate, and/or the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

Review of Effectiveness 

Bromley has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance 
framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of 
the Corporate Leadership Team comprising Directors and Assistant Directors within the Authority who are 
responsible for the development and maintenance of the governance environment. This is supported by the 
Head of Audit’s annual report, the Policy Development and Scrutiny annual report, and also by comments 
made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

As part of this review the Assistant Directors and Heads of Service, where appropriate, have completed and 
signed an Assurance Statement in relation to their service areas. In turn each Director has reviewed the 
effectiveness of key controls, using a detailed checklist, to provide an overall Assurance Statement for their 
own directorates. 

The governance framework and internal control environment encompasses all the organisation’s policies, 
procedures and operations in place. At Bromley this is based on a framework of regular management 
information, financial regulations, administrative procedures (including segregation of duties), management 
supervision, and a system of delegation and accountability. 

The process of maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework, including the 
system of internal control, includes the following elements: 

Council Framework 

We continue to operate with a Leader and an Executive. The Leader retains responsibility on all decisions 
about the Council’s executive functions. In practice these are either undertaken by the full Executive or 
delegated to Portfolio Holders and officers.. 

The Executive contains the Leader and six Members each responsible for a portfolio. Each Portfolio Holder 
annually outlines, in a portfolio plan, their aims and what they will be doing towards achieving their goals 
and their performance targets.  

The full Council is responsible for adopting the authority's Constitution and Members' code of conduct and 
for approving the budget and policy framework within which the Executive operates. 

Chief Officers (Directors) are responsible for ensuring that Members are advised of the financial 
implications of all proposals liaising as necessary with the Director of Finance. In addition they are 
responsible for promoting sound financial practices in relation to the standards, performance and 
development of staff in their departments. 

Policy Development and Scrutiny Committees 

Overview and Scrutiny is an important part of the process of checks and balances in local government and is 
the principal means of ensuring that the Council and its partners are held to account. Six Policy Development 
and Scrutiny (PDS) Committees discharge this role as set out in the Local Government Act 2000 and 
successive legislation. The PDS Committees mirror the Council’s Executive portfolios. In addition there are 
three PDS Sub-Committees and Select Sub Committees: 
• Education Children and Families  Budget and Performance Sub-Committee
• Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee

The London Borough of Bromley
119

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 28



• Contracts Sub-Committee

Although they have no decision making powers,  PDS Committees and Sub-Committees have key roles in 
contributing to policy development and scrutinising the decisions of the Executive and individual Portfolio 
Holders. 

PDS Committees monitor the performance of services and functions within their remit, assessing 
performance against key performance indicators and policy objectives. Concerns are reported to a Portfolio 
Holder who can then, if necessary, be called to a PDS Committee meeting to account for the performance of 
his or her Portfolio. 

They are also involved in the budget setting process and provide comment and recommendations for the 
Executive to take account of when formulating the Council’s annual budget. Similarly, PDS Committees 
monitor in-year spend of budgets and raise concerns where there is a possibility of overspend or other issues 
affecting spending priorities. In addition PDS Committees can commission groups of Councillors to review 
an issue or policy so assisting a Portfolio Holder or the Executive to improve a service or local function 
affecting local people.  

More routine decisions can be made without pre decision scrutiny at a PDS meeting where the PDS 
Committees and Portfolio Holders are in agreement, subject to the proposed decision being emailed to all 
Members in advance. Any Member may then request that a matter be referred to the relevant PDS 
Committee before a decision is taken. 

The call-in process is a key means by which PDS Committees can hold the Executive to account. Any five 
Councillors can call-in a decision and prevent it from taking immediate effect until it has been considered by 
a PDS Committee. The Committee can then interview the Portfolio Holder and Officers and consider 
whether the decision was appropriate, within the Council’s policy framework, and whether it should be 
reconsidered. If the Committee feels that the decision should have been reversed or altered, it can make a 
recommendation to the Executive, which then has to reconsider the matter. 

The Executive and Resources PDS Committee has an over-arching, coordinating role on behalf of the other 
five PDS Committees and provides an Annual Report to full Council summarising the work that has been 
carried out during the year.  

The Executive and Resources PDS Committee has a rolling programme where the Leader of the Council, the 
Resources Portfolio Holder and the Chief Executive each do two presentations a year on a rota basis. The 
other PDS Committees do not generally do this although the relevant Portfolio Holders and Chief Officers 
are usually present at all their meetings.   

The Committees are supported by the statutory Scrutiny Officer who also provides support and guidance to 
Members on the functions of overview and scrutiny. 

Internal Audit 

Internal Audit is responsible for conducting audits, using a risk based approach, to highlight any weaknesses 
throughout the Council.  Internal Audit operates to defined standards as set out in the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS). The effectiveness of the system of Internal Audit is measured by compliance with 
this code and peer reviews.  Internal Audit provides an independent opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the system of internal control. In March 2016 Internal Audit was independently assessed 

The London Borough of Bromley
120

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 29



under PSIAS’ ‘Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme’, to ensure compliance with their standards. 
The overall assessment was that the council’s internal audit service generally conforms to their requirements. 

An Annual Audit Plan is used to map out the cyclical coverage of fundamental financial systems and other 
audits. The plan is based on the identification of the Council’s systems and activities to be audited, each 
assessed for risk. Work relating to prevention and detection of fraud and corruption is integrated into this 
audit planning process. Each audit is reported to the appropriate level of management together with agreed 
action plans where appropriate. In addition all significant weaknesses are reported to Audit Sub-Committee 
and followed-up until recommendations are implemented. The supporting summaries of audit reports help 
inform the overall assessment of internal controls.  

The Head of Internal Audit is empowered to report any matter of concern directly and independently, to the 
Chief Executive, the Chairman of Audit Sub-Committee or the Leader of the Council, if necessary. 

In his Annual Report to Audit Sub-Committee the Head of Audit confirmed that ‘my overall opinion on the 
control environment based on the internal testing and reviews undertaken is that there is overall reliance on 
the internal controls identified and where there have been significant issues highlighted provide assurance 
that corrective management action has been or will be taken to mitigate the risks. Over the past year there 
have been audits that highlighted a number of weaknesses in the areas of contract management and 
monitoring. Some of these weaknesses have resulted in priority one recommendations.  The Head of Audit 
can confirm that these weaknesses will need to be addressed at a corporate level and lessons learnt from the 
audit findings be dissipated across the Authority. Internal Audit will continue to apply close scrutiny to 
ensure that all current priority control weaknesses are addressed by management.’  

Following the launch of a new Counter Fraud Code Assessment Tool by CIPFA in September 2015 to 
provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of an organisation’s counter fraud arrangements 
Internal Audit carried out a self-assessment. This evidenced that we were generally compliant with the 68 
performance statements. 

Internal Audit submits an Annual Fraud Report to Audit Sub-Committee summarising all fraud and 
investigations undertaken during the year. Audit Sub-Committee has provided assurance to the external 
auditors that they are satisfied with our fraud arrangements within the Authority. 

External Inspections 

In their External Audit Report for the year ended 31 March 2016, presented to the General Purposes and 
Licensing Committee on 14 September 2016, the external auditors KPMG LLP reported the following: 

• ‘We reviewed the Authority’s budget setting and monitoring processes and deemed financial
monitoring to be appropriate to allow the Authority to make informed decisions. The Council
has a history of achieving the budgeted position, and reported underspends in both 2014/15 and
2015/16. Savings and growth pressures have been assessed for the next two years as part of the
medium term financial plan and the requirement to set a balanced budget. We completed some
brief sensitivity analysis on the assumptions within the medium term financial plan, specifically
the effect of the finance settlement worsening.

• ‘We reviewed the legal, governance and accounting arrangements in place to govern the
management of the BCF. This included reviewing all Health and Wellbeing Board minutes from
April 2015 to the date of our audit opinion. We concluded that arrangements were appropriate to
allow the authority to manage the BCF in conjunction with Bromley CCG and other relevant
partners (where required). We reviewed the signed section 75 agreement in place which sets out

The London Borough of Bromley 121

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 30



a clear vision for Bromley. Within the local plan for 2015/16 key areas of interdependency are 
noted to allow the Health and Wellbeing Board to actively manage risks and complete tasks 
assigned to it in order to improve outcomes for local people.’ 

• Three internal control deficiencies were reported covering the lack of fixed asset register
reconciliation, the use of a designated Pension Fund bank account, and the ability of finance
team to self-approve and post journals. The recommendations were accepted and acted upon,
with the exception of the Pension Fund bank account that Bromley will continue to review.

• ‘We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and confirmed that: — It complies with
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework published by
CIPFA/SOLACE; and — It is not misleading or inconsistent with other information We are
aware of from our audit of the financial statements’

During the last year the Council has received the following assessments from other inspectorates: 

Ofsted – Inspection of services for children in need of help and protection, children looked after and 
care leavers and Review of the effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding Children Board – May 2016 

Overall rating for this service: Inadequate 

Five of the five key judgements were rated Inadequate. 

Bromley’s services for children were inspected by Ofsted in April and May 2016.  They were found to be 
inadequate across all reported categories and the inspection raised serious questions surrounding practice and 
leadership.  In October 2016, a report was published setting out findings of the appointed commissioner of a 
three-month review considering the extent to which the Council had the leadership and management capacity 
and capability to drive forward the changes necessary to achieve the required standard for their children and 
young people. 

In addition to the oversight provided by a Commissioner, Bromley has continued to receive monitoring visits 
from Ofsted throughout the review period.  Since December 2016, when the new Deputy Chief Executive 
took up his post, the Ofsted monitoring visits have recognised continuing progress being made for Bromley’s 
children.  The latest monitoring visit letter recognises ‘momentum in the establishment of and embedding 
core standards and processes’.  Inspectors concluded that there are continuing improvements in practice and 
that increased capacity at social work and managerial level, aligned with more active engagement of 
partners, is a key contributor to the progress seen.   

The following improvements were identified by Ofsted: 

• Social workers spoken to know their cases well;

• The views of children have been sought and reflected, where appropriate, in plans;

• Direct work with children was evident in cases reviewed;

• Within the cases considered, there is very recent improved practice that is leading to improved outcomes
for some children and families;

• Multi-agency information is starting to contribute to strategy discussions, and this is leading to more
proportionate, timely and appropriate actions and compliance with statutory guidance;

The London Borough of Bromley 122

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 31



• Recent improvements to the quality of recording are starting to evidence the voice of the child, and
examples were seen of direct work with children that is helping to improve their outcomes;

• A new, permanent and experienced senior management team is having a positive impact and while this
has taken time to establish, the result is a more recent acceleration to the pace of change

In addition, the leadership, governance and processes implemented through the ‘Roadmap to Excellence’ 
were also identified as making a positive impact. These include the Practice Standards, ‘triple lock’, the 
revised thresholds to care, the new ‘Atlas’ team, the permanence and planning panel, and the additional 
financial resources provided by the Leader of the Council, the new Lead Member for Children’s Services and 
the Chief Executive. 

Ofsted – Further Education and Skills (Bromley Adult Education College) – February 2017 

Overall rating for this service: Requires Improvement 

Five out of five key judgements were rated Requires Improvement. 

Care Quality Commission – Home Care (Home Care provides a reablement service to people living in 
their own homes) – November 2016 

Overall rating for this service: Requires Improvement 

Two out of five key judgements were rated Requires Improvement. 

Improvements that were required have been made and continue to provide scrutiny and review cases. Going 
forward the LBB contracts compliance team will review the service in addition to the CQC.  

Care Quality Commission – Shared Lives (Shared Lives recruits, trains and supports carers who 
provide placements for adults within their own family homes in the community) – July 2016 

Overall rating for this service: Good 

The service continues to perform well and Bromley is looking to grow the service as it enables adults to live 
in home environments within the community.  

HM Inspectorate of Probation – Bromley Youth Offending Service. – February 2017 

An inspection was carried out and initial feedback is that the service has improved from poor in 
2015 to satisfactory.  

-------------------------------------------------------------- 

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance 
framework by the Corporate Risk Management Group, and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as 
fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The areas already addressed and those to be 
specifically addressed with new actions planned are outlined below. 

Significant Governance Issues 

Last year we identified the following governance issues: 

The London Borough of Bromley 123

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 32



Governance Issue and Actions Outcome 
1. Capacity to make further budget savings and
maintain frontline services. The Council will need 
to make significant savings/achieve additional 
income of approximately £24m per annum by 
2020/21. 

The Executive is working to balance the budget for  
2017/18. Where possible identified savings will be 
taken as early as possible. We continue to retain 
four year forward planning.  

During 2016/17 we continued to make significant 
savings and our budget for 2017/18 allows us to 
address increased demands on council services, often 
for our most vulnerable residents, as well as the 
additional responsibilities local authorities have to 
shoulder without any more money from government. 

Governance Issue and Actions Outcome 
2. Commissioning and transformation agenda:

The Commissioning Board will continue to identify 
services that are either standalone or can be 
bundled together and then seek approval to market 
test or other options. 

The Commissioning Board led by the Director of 
Commissioning and overseen by the Resources 
Portfolio Holder meet on a regular basis to review 
progress. Every decision taken concerning 
commissioning is taken after scrutiny by a PDS 
Committee, the relevant Portfolio Holder, and the 
Executive. 

3. Welfare reform agenda: The government
continues to reform the welfare system with the 
first phase of Universal Credit rolled-out to 
claimants in January 2016. The government is also 
committed to cutting a further £12bn from welfare 
spending. 

The resulting impact on Council’s services will 
need to be assessed and reported to the relevant 
PDS Committees. 

Council Tax Support Scheme: Following a public 
consultation the Council agreed in November 2016 to 
maintain the level of support to 75% of Council Tax 
Liability for working age claimants for the financial 
year 2017/18. 

The Council has been modelling the impact of the 
Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 which includes 
provisions for cuts to tax credits and the benefits cap. 

Currently Universal Credit is only applicable to 
single people in Bromley, until May 2018 when it is 
expected to be rolled out to all claimants. 

4. Business rates retention. The authority directly
retains 30% of any Business Rates received since 
April 2013. The intention is for Local Authority’s 
to retain 100% of all rates from April 2019. Failure 
to collect Business Rates and a reduction in eligible 
business will have a direct cost to Bromley.  

The Council has its contract for the collection of 
Business Rates and continues to monitor the 
performance of the contractor and require action 
where targets are not being met.  

5. IR35 New Tax Legislation, which places an
increased responsibility on employers to ensure that 
non-directly contracted temporary staff are 
procured correctly. 

Amendment of the Agency staff contract and 
introduction of staff procedures to ensure all workers 
utilised comply with legislation.   

The London Borough of Bromley 124

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 33



6. Ofsted Inspection:
Bromley’s services for children were inspected by 
Ofsted in April and May 2016.  They were found to 
be inadequate across all reported categories and the 
inspection raised serious questions surrounding 
practice and leadership 

Following publication of the report the Authority has 
recruited a new Deputy Chief Executive to Oversee 
Children’s and Adults Services and new Leadership 
Team for Children’s Services, new resources have 
been made available and more active engagement 
with partners is taking place.  

Any outstanding issues are included in the table below, together with any new governance issues. 

Governance Issue Actions 
Capacity to make further budget savings and 
maintain frontline services: The Council will need 
to make significant savings of around £24m per 
annum by 2020/21. 

The Executive is working to balance the budget for 
2017/18. Where possible identified savings will be 
taken as early as possible. We continue to retain four 
year forward planning. 

Commissioning and transformation agenda The Commissioning Team will continue to identify 
services that are either standalone or can be bundled 
together and then seek approval to market test or 
other options. 

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our 
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were 
identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our 
next annual review. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

The London Borough of Bromley 125

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Page 34



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6TH JULY 2017 AND MATTERS ARISING
	5 MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT
	Standards 220218 Appendix C Annual Governance Statement
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 116
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 117
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 118
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 119
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 120
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 121
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 122
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 123
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 124
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 125
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 126
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 127
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 128
	LB_Bromley_Statement_of_Accounts_2016_17 (1) 129


	7 MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT - APPENDIX D: COMPLAINTS



